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that occurred more than one year before the initiation of this proceeding, is appropriate for an
administrative penalty action.

1.4, OnJune 16, 2016, EPA notified Respondent Wheeler Rock Products and the
Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakima Nation that EPA had found that Respondent
Wheeler Rock Products committed the alleged violations described in Part IV of this Complaint.

1.5.  Wheeler Rock Products and Trina Wheeler (“Respondents”) are hereby notified
that Complainant alleges that Respondents violated the provisions identified herein and seeks the
assessment of a civil penalty. This Complaint also provides notice of Respondents’ opportunity

to request a hearing.

II. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

2.1.  Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(¢), defines “person” to include “an
individual, corporation, partnership, association, State, municipality, political subdivision of a
State, and any agency, department, or instrumentality of the United States and any officer, agent,
or employee thereof.”

2.2.  Sections 111(a)(3) and 302(2z) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a)(3), 7602(z), and
40 C.F.R. §§ 49.152(b) and 52.21(b)(5), define ‘‘stationary source” to mean “any building,
structure, facility, or installation which emits or may emit any pollutant.”

2.3.  Section 111(a)(5) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a)(5), defines “owner or

operator” to mean “any person who owns, leases, operates, controls, or supervises a stationary

source.”
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2.4.  The term “Indian Country” is defined in 18 U.S.C. § 1151 to mean, inter alia, “all
land within the limits of any Indian reservation under the jurisdiction of the United States
government.”

2.5.  Section 111(a)(2) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(a)(2), defines “new source” to
mean “any stationary source, the construction or modification of which is commenced after the
publication of regulations (or, if earlier, proposed regulations) prescribing a standard of
performance under this section which will be applicable to such source.

2.6.  Pursuant to Section 111(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(b), EPA has
promulgated New Source Performance Standards (“NSPS”) for specified categories of stationary
sources of air pollutants that are “new sources.”

2.7.  EPA promulgated the Standards of Performance for Nonmetallic Mineral
Processing Plants, codified at 40 C.F.R. part 60, subpart OOO (“NSPS 307), to set standards of
performance for equipment associated with nonmetallic mineral processing plants constructed
after August 3, 1983.

2.8.  Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. § 60.670(a)(1), NSPS 30 applies to the following
affected facilities in fixed or portable nonmetallic mineral processing plants: each crusher,
grinding mill, screening operation, bucket elevator, belt conveyor, bagging operation, storage
bin, enclosed truck or railcar loading station.

2.9.  The term “nonmetallic mineral processing plant” is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 60.671
to mean “any combination of equipment that is used to crush or grind any nonmetallic mineral

wherever located, including lime plants, power plants, steel mills, asphalt concrete plants,
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portland cement plants, or any other facility processing nonmetallic minerals except as provided
in [40 C.F.R.] § 60.670 (b) and (c).”

2.10. The term “crusher” is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 60.671 to mean ‘“‘a machine used to
crush any nonmetallic minerals, and includes, but is not limited to, the following types: Jaw,
gyratory, cone, roll, rod mill, hammermill, and impactor.”

2.11. The term “initial crusher” is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 60.671 to mean “any crusher
into which nonmetallic minerals can be fed without prior crushing in the plant.”

2.12. The term “belt conveyor” is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 60.671 to mean “a conveying
device that transports material from one location to another by means of an endless belt that is
carried on a series of idlers and routed around a pulley at each end.”

2.13. The term “screening operation” is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 60.671 to mean “a
device for separating material according to size by passing undersize material through one or
more mesh surfaces (screens) in series, and retaining oversize material on the mesh surfaces
(screens). Grizzly feeders associated with truck dumping and static (non-moving) grizzlies used
anywhere in the nonmetallic mineral processing plant are not considered to be screening
operations.”

2.14. Pursuant to Sections 301(a) and 301(d)(4) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7601(a) and
7601(d)(4), on July 1, 2011, EPA issued a Federal Implementation Plan that established a minor
new source review permit program applicable to sources located in Indian Country (“Tribal
Minor NSR Program”). The Tribal Minor NSR Program is codified at 40 C.F.R. §§ 49.151-165.

2.15. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 49.153(a)(i)(B), the Tribal Minor NSR Program is

applicable to the construction of sources that have a potential to emit a regulated NSR pollutant
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in quantities greater than or equal to the corresponding minor NSR threshold in Table 1 of
40 C.F.R. § 49.153, which depend on the attainment status of the reservation.

2.16. The term “potential to emit” or “PTE” is defined by 40 C.F.R. § 49.152 to mean
“the maximum capacity of a source to emit a pollutant under its physical and operational design.
Any physical or operational limitation on the capacity of the source to emit a pollutant, including
air pollution control equipment and restrictions on hours of operation or on the type or amount of
material combusted, stored or processed, shall be treated as part of its design if the limitation or
effect it would have on emissions is enforceable as a practical matter.”

2.17. The Yakama Indian Reservation is in attainment or unclassifiable for all
pvollutants.

2.18. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 49.152(b) and 52.21(b)(50), the term “regulated
NSR pollutant” includes carbon monoxide (“CO”), nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur dioxide (SO.),
volatile organic compounds (“VOC?™), coarse particulate matter (“PM-107), and fine particulate
matter (“PM-2.57).

2.19. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 49.151(c)(iii)(B), on or after September 2, 2014, a
source that is subject to the Tribal Minor NSR Program (that is not an oil and natural gas source)
cannot commence construction without first obtaining a permit pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 49.154
and 49.155 (or a general permit/permit by rule pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 49.156, if applicable).

2.20. At no time relevant to this Complaint has the Confederated Tribes and Bands of
the Yakama Nation administered an EPA-approved minor NSR program for the Yakama Indian

Reservation. See 40 C.F.R. § 49.11102.
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2.21. Title V of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661-7661f, establishes an operating permit
program for certain sources, including “major sources.” Section 502(a) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), provides that, after the effective date of any Permit program approved or
promulgated under Title V of the CAA, it shall be unlawful for any person to operate a major
source except in compliance with a Permit issued by a permitting authority under Title V of the
CAA.

2.22.  Section 501(2) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7661(2), defines “major source’ to mean
“any stationary source (or any group of stationary sources located within a contiguous area and
under common control) that is either of the following: . . . (B) A major stationary source as
defined in [Section 302 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602].

2.23. Section 302 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602 and 40 C.F.R. § 71.2, define “major
stationary source” to mean “any stationary facility or source of air pollutants which directly
emits, or has the potential to emit, one hundred tons per year or more of any air pollutant
(including any major emitting facility or source of fugitive emissions of any such pollutant, as
determined by rule by the Administrator).”

2.24. EPA promulgated the Federal Operating Permit Program on July 1, 1996 at
40 C.F.R. Part 71. 61 Fed. Reg. 34,202.

2.25. Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. § 71.4(b), “[EPA] will administer and enforce an
operating permits program in Indian Country, as defined in [40 C.F.R.] § 71.2, when an
operating permits program which meets the requirements of [40 C.F.R. Part 70) has not been

explicitly granted full or interim approval by the Administrator for Indian Country.”
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2.26. At no time relevant to this Complaint has the EPA Administrator explicitly
granted a full or interim approval of an operating permits program under 40 C.F.R. Part 70 for
the Yakama Indian Reservation.

2.27. Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. § 71.4(b)(2), the effective date of a part 71 program
in Indian Country shall be March 22, 1999.

2.28. Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 71.3(a) and 71.5(a), the owner or operator of a
major source must submit a complete application for an operating permit within 12 months after

the source becomes subject to the permit program.

III. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

3.1.  Respondent Wheeler Rock Products is a corporation incorporated under the laws
of the Confederated Tribes and Bands of the Yakama Nation. Therefore, Respondent Wheeler
Rock Products is a person as that term is defined in Section 302(e) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7602(e).

3.2.  Respondent Trina Wheeler is an individual. Therefore, Respondent Trina Wheeler
is a person as that term is defined in Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7602(e).

3.3.  Since at least June 1, 2015, Respondents have owned and/or operated a facility
located at 501 and/or 502 Cowin Lane, Wapato, Washington, with approximate coordinates
46.471476, -120.515192 (“Facility”).

3.4.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, the Facility has been located within the

exterior boundaries of the Yakama Indian Reservation.
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3.5. The Yakama Indian Reservation meets the definition of Indian Country in
18 U.S.C. § 1151 and 40 C.F.R. § 71.2.

3.6.  Since at least June 1, 2015, until present, Respondents have owned and/or
operated the equipment located at the “Facility.”

3.7.  Onlune 1, 2015, Respondents installed a portable nonmetallic mineral processing
plant (“NMP Plant”), as that term is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 60.671, at the Facility.

3.8.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, the NMP Plant consisted of: two crushers,
two screening operations, and at least eleven belt conveyors, as those terms are defined in
40 C.F.R. § 60.671, each of which commenced construction after August 31, 1983.

3.9. Atall times relevant to this Complaint, the rated capacity of the initial crusher
component of the NMP Plant has been at least 240 tons of nonmetallic minerals per hour.

3.10. Therefore, in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 60.670(a)(1), the two crushers, two
screening operations, and at least eleven belt conveyors in the NMP Plant alleged in Paragraph
3.8 are affected facilities subject to NSPS 30.

3.11. The initial startup of the NMP Plant occurred on or about June 15, 2015.

3.12. Onor about June 1, 2015, Respondents installed a concrete batch plant (“Concrete
Plant”) at the Facility.

3.13. The initial startup of the Concrete Plant occurred on or about June 15, 2015.

3.14. The rated capacity of the Concrete Plant is 120 cubic yards of concrete per hour.

3.15. The Facility is a “stationary source” as that term is defined in
40 C.F.R. §§ 49.152(b) and 52.21(b)(5), and Sections 111(a)(3) and 302(z) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a)(3), 7602(z). Alternatively, the NMP Plant and Concrete Plant are
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“stationary sources” as that term is defined in 40 C.F.R. §§ 49.152(b) and 52.21(b)(5), and

Sections 111(a)(3) and 302(z) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a)(3), 7602(2).

IV.  VIOLATIONS

4.1.  The allegations in Paragraphs 3.1 through 3.15 are incorporated by reference and

realleged herein.

Count 1: Failure to provide notification of initial startup of the NMP Plant
4.2.  Inaccordance with 40 C.F.R. § 60.7(a), owners and operators of new sources
subject to an NSPS standard are required to submit notification of the actual date of initial startup
of an affected facility. The notification must be postmarked within 15 days after such date.
40 C.F.R. § 60.7(a)(3).
4.3. Respondents failed to provide a notification of initial startup for the 15 affected
facilities at the NMP Plant subject to NSPS 30. Therefore, Respondents violated

40 C.F.R. § 60.7(a)(3) from at least June 30, 2013, to the present.

Count 2: Failure to timely perform an initial performance test and demonstrate compliance
with opacity standards

4.4,  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 60.672 and Table 3 of NSPS 30, the owner or operator of
affected facilities subject to NSPS 30 must demonstrate compliance with the fugitive emission

limits and compliance requirements by conducting an initial performance test that includes

opacity observations according to 40 C.F.R. § 60.11 and 40 C.F.R. § 60.675.
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4.5.  The regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 60.672(b) and 40 C.F.R. § 60.11(e)(1) require that
for the purpose of demonstrating initial compliance, opacity observations shall be conducted no
later than 180 days after initial startup of the facility.

4.6.  Therefore, Respondents were required to perform an initial performance test on
the affected facilities in the NMP Plant by December 12, 2015.

4.7.  Respondents performed an initial performance test on the NMP Plant on
November 22, 2016.

4.8.  Therefore, Respondents failed to perform an initial performance test and to
demonstrate initial compliance with the emission limits by December 12, 2015 for the 15
affected facilities in the NMP Plant. Therefore, Respondents violated 40 C.F.R. § 60.11(e)(1)

and 40 C.F.R. § 60.672(b) from December 12, 2015, to November 22, 2016.

Count 3: Failure to Obtain a Tribal Minor New Source Review Permit

4.9. Respondents commenced construction of the Facility, including the NMP Plant
and Concrete Plant, on or around June 1, 2015.

4.10. Prior to August 11, 2017, the NMP Plant, Concrete Plant, and Facility’s Potentials
to Emit (“PTE”) severally and jointly exceeded the thresholds found in Table 1 to
40 C.F.R. § 49.153 for each of the following pollutants: PM and PM-10.

4.11. Respondents obtained Tribal Minor New Source Review permits for the NMP
Plant and Concrete Plant on August 11, 2017.

4.12. At no time prior to August 11, 2017, had Respondents obtained a Tribal Minor

New Source Review permit to construct and operate the Facility, NMP Plant, or Concrete Plant.
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4.13. Between June 1, 2015, and August 11, 2017, Respondents failed to obtain a Tribal
Minor New Source Review permit to construct and operate the Facility, NMP Plant, or Concrete
Plant pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 49.154 and 40 C.F.R. § 49.155 (or a general permit / permit by rule
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 49.156, if applicable). Therefore, Respondents violated

40 C.F.R. § 49.151(c)(iii)(B) from June 1, 2015, to August 11, 2017.

Count 4: Failure to Submit an Application for a Title V Operating Permit

4.14. The allegations in paragraphs 4.2 through 4.13 are incorporated by reference and
realleged herein.

4.15. Priorto August 11, 2017, the Facility’s PTE for PM-10 exceeded 100 tons per
year.

4.16. Priorto August 11,2017, the Concrete Plant’s PTE for PM-10 exceeded 100 tons
per year.

4.17. Therefore, prior to August 11, 2017, the Facility and the Concrete Plant met the
definition of “major source” as that term is defined in Section 501(2) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7661(2), and 40 C.F.R. § 71.2.

4.18. Respondents failed to submit a timely and complete application for an operating
permit for the Facility or the Concrete Plant earlier than June 15, 2016, which is 12 months
following June 15, 2015.

4.19. Therefore, Respondents violated 40 C.F.R. § 70.5(a) and Section 502(a) of the

CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a), between June 15, 2016, and August 11, 2017.
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factors as justice may require) the size of the business, the economic impact of the penalty on the
business, the violator’s full compliance history and good faith efforts to comply, the duration of
the violation as established by any credible evidence (including evidence other than the
applicable test method), payment by the violator of penalties previously assessed for the same
violation, the economic benefit of noncompliance, and the seriousness of the violation.

5.5. To develop a proposed pénalty for the violations alleged in this Complaint, EPA
will take into account the particular facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference
to EPA’s October 25, 1991, Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy (“Penalty Policy”) and the
Adjustment of Civil Monetary Penalties for Inflation, 40 C.F.R. Part 19. This policy and
regulation provide a rational, consistent, and equitable methodology for applying the statutory
penalty factors enumerated in Paragraph 5.4, above, to particular cases.

5.6.  Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.14(a)(4)(ii), an explanation of the severity of the
violations alleged in this Complaint is set forth below.

5.7.  The Penalty Policy provides a method for calculating “the gravity component” of
the penalty to reflect the severity or seriousness of a violation. The gravity component is
determined based on an evaluation of three objective factors: (1) actual or possible harm, (2)
importance to the regulatory scheme, and (3) size of violator. Regarding “‘actual or possible
harm,” the Penalty Policy states that, among other things, the “length of time a violation
continues” is an indicator of the actual or possible harm caused by the violation. Regarding
“importance to the regulatory scheme” the Penalty Policy states that “this factor focuses on the
importance of the requirement to achieving the goals of the Clean Air Act and its implementing

regulations.” Regarding the “size of violator” factor, the Penalty Policy prescribes a penalty
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amount that increases proportional to the net worth (for corporations) or net current assets (for
partnerships or sole proprietorships) of the company. For the purposes of the “size of violator”
factor, based on publicly available information, Complainant estimates Respondents’ net worth
and current assets are between $100,001 and $1,000,000. An evaluation of Counts 1 through 4
based on the remaining two objective factors described in this Paragraph is presented in
Paragraphs 5.8 through 5.11, below.

5.8.  Count 1: Failure to Provide Notification of Initial Startup of the NMP Plant. The
violation is ongoing. The Penalty Policy lists a “failure to report or notify” as “very significant in
the regulatory scheme.” The purpose of NSPS 30 is to maintain ambient air quality by ensuring
that new nonmetallic mineral processing plants implement the best demonstrated emission
control technologies. 73 Fed. Reg. 21,559, 21,561 (Apr. 22, 2008). By failing to submit the
required initial notification, Respondents prevented the EPA from assessing compliance with
NSPS 30 at the facility.

5.9.  Count 2: Failure to timely perform an initial performance test and demonstrate
compliance with opacity standards. The violation occurred for 11 months. The Penalty Policy
lists a “failure to conduct required performance testing” as “very significant in the regulatory
scheme.” In particular, Respondents’ failure to conduct the required initial performance test is a
very serious violation of the CAA, because it is not possible to determine if the source is
operating in compliance with the emissions standards without conducting the test.

5.10. Count 3: Failﬁre to Obtain a Tribal Minor New Source Review Permit. The
violation occurred for 26 months. The purpose of the Tribal Minor New Source Review permit

program is to “ensure that air resources in Indian Country [are] protected in the manner intended
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eCFR — Code of Federal Regulations

determines that issues raised, but not appealed by the parties, should be argued, it shall give the parties written notice of such
determination to allow preparation of adequate argument. The Environmental Appeals Board may remand the case to the
Presiding Officer for further proceedings.

(d) Argument before the Environmental Appeals Board. The Environmental Appeals Board may, at its discretion in
response to a request or on its own initiative, order oral argument on any or all issues in a proceeding. To request oral
argument, a party must include in its substantive brief a statement explaining why oral argument is necessary. The
Environmental Appeals Board may, by order, establish additional procedures governing any oral argument before the
Environmental Appeals Board.

(e) Motions on appeal—(1) Generaf. All motions made during the course of an appeal shall conform to §22.16 unless
otherwise provided. In advance of filing a motion, parties must attempt to ascertain whether the other party(ies) concur(s) or
object(s) to the motion and must indicate in the motion the attempt made and the response obtained.

(2) Disposition of a motion for a procedural order, The Environmental Appeals Board may act on a motion for a procedural
order at any time without awaiting a response.

(3) Timing on motions for extension of time. Parties must file motions for extensions of time sufficiently in advance of the
due date to allow other parties to have a reasonable opportunity to respond to the request for more time and to provide the
Environmental Appeals Board with a reasonable opportunity to issue an order.

(f) Decision. The Environmental Appeals Board shall adopt, modify, or set aside the findings of fact and conclusions of law
or discretion contained in the decision or order being reviewed, and shall set forth in the final order the reasons for its actions.
The Environmental Appeals Board may assess a penalty that is higher or lower than the amount recommended to be assessed
in the decision or order being reviewed or from the amount sought in the complaint, except that if the order being reviewed is a
default order, the Environmental Appeals Board may not increase the amount of the penalty above that proposed in the
complaint or in the motion for default, whichever is less. The Environmental Appeals Board may adopt, modify or set aside any
recommended compliance or corrective action order or Permit Action. The Environmental Appeals Board may remand the case
to the Presiding Officer for further action.

[64 FR 40176, July 23, 1999, as amended at 68 FR 2204, Jan. 16, 2003; 69 FR 77639, Dec. 28, 2004; 79 FR 65901, Nov. 6, 2014; 80 FR
13252, Mar. 13, 2015; 82 FR 2235, Jan. 9, 2017]

oo

Subpart G—Final Order
t o

§22.31 Final order.

(a) Effect of final order. A final order constitutes the final Agency action in a proceeding. The final order shall not in any
case affect the right of the Agency or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal
sanctions for any violations of law. The final order shall resolve only those causes of action alleged in the complaint, or for
proceedings commenced pursuant to §22.13(b), alleged in the consent agreement. The final order does not waive, extinguish
or otherwise affect respondent'’s obligation to comply with ali applicable provisions of the Act and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

(b) Effective date. A final order is effective upon filing. Where an initial decision becomes a final order pursuant to
§22.27(c), the final order is effective 45 days after the initial decision is served on the parties.

(c) Payment of a civil penalty. The respondent shall pay the full amount of any civil penalty assessed in the final order
within 30 days after the effective date of the final order unless otherwise ordered. Payment shall be made by sending a
cashier's check or certified check to the payee specified in the complaint, unless otherwise instructed by the complainant. The
check shall note the case title and docket number. Respondent shall serve copies of the check or other instrument of payment
on the Regional Hearing Clerk and on complainant. Collection of interest on overdue payments shall be in accordance with the
Debt Collection Act, 31 U.S.C. 3717.

(d) Other relief. Any final order requiring compliance or corrective action, or a Permit Action, shall become effective and
enforceable without further proceedings on the effective date of the final order unless otherwise ordered.

(e) Final orders to Federal agencies on appeal. (1) A final order of the Environmental Appeals Board issued pursuant to
§22.30 to a department, agency, or instrumentality of the United States shall become effective 30 days after its service upon
the parties unless the head of the affected depariment, agency, or instrumentality requests a conference with the Administrator
in writing and serves a copy of the request on the parties of record within 30 days of service of the finai order. If a timely
request is made, a decision by the Administrator shall become the final order.

(2) A motion for reconsideration pursuant to §22.32 shall not toil the 30-day period described in paragraph (e)(1) of this
section uniess specifically so ordered by the Environmental Appeals Board.

L SEETHONSYS

§22.32 Motion to reconsider a final order.

https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=3c4c1e4362c2f0c | bfdea6e9465afc9d&ime=true&node=pt40.1.22&rgn=div5[1/3/2018 2:46:38 PM]
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§22.38 Supplemental rules of practice governing the administrative assessment of civil penalties under the Clean
Water Act.

(a) Scope. This section shall apply, in conjunction with §§22.1 through 22.32 and §22.45, in administrative proceedings for
the assessment of any civil penalty under section 309(g) or section 311(b)(6) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA")(33 U.S.C.
1319(g) and 1321(b)(6)). Where inconsistencies exist between this section and §§22.1 through 22.32, this section shall apply.

(b) Consuitation with States. For proceedings pursuant to section 309(g), the complainant shall provide the State agency
with the most direct authority over the matters at issue in the case an opportunity to consult with the complainant. Complainant
shall notify the State agency within 30 days following proof of service of the complaint on the respondent or, in the case of a
proceeding proposed to be commenced pursuant to §22.13(b), no less than 40 days before the issuance of an order assessing
a civil penalty.

(c) Administrative procedure and judicial review. Action of the Administrator for which review could have been obtained
under section 509(b)(1) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 1369(b)(1), shall not be subject to review in an administrative proceeding for the
assessment of a civil penalty under section 309(g) or section 311(b)(6).

£ o

§22.39 Supplemental rules governing the administrative assessment of civil penalties under section 109 of the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended.

(a) Scope. This section shall apply, in conjunction with §§22.10 through 22.32, in administrative proceedings for the
assessment of any civil penalty under section 109 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. 9609). Where inconsistencies exist between this section and §§22.1 through
22.32, this section shall apply.

(b) Judicial review. Any person who requested a hearing with respect to a Class Il civil penalty under section 109(b) of
CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. 9609(b), and who is the recipient of a final order assessing a civil penalty may file a petition for judicial
review of such order with the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia or for any other circuit in which such
person resides or transacts business. Any person who requested a hearing with respect to a Class | civil penalty under section
109(a)(4) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. 9609(a)(4), and who is the recipient of a final order assessing the civil penalty may file a
petition for judicial review of such order with the appropriate district court of the United States. All petitions must be filed within
30 days of the date the order making the assessment was served on the parties.

(c) Payment of civil penalty assessed. Payment of civil penalties assessed in the final order shall be made by forwarding a
cashier's check, payable to the “EPA, Hazardous Substances Superfund,” in the amount assessed, and noting the case title
and docket number, to the appropriate regional Superfund Lockbox Depository.

L

§22.40 [Reserved]

oo e

§22.41 Supplemental rules governing the administrative assessment of civil penalties under Title i of the Toxic
Substance Control Act, enacted as section 2 of the Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA).

(a) Scope. This section shall apply, in conjunction with §§22.1 through 22.32, in administrative proceedings to assess a civil
penalty conducted under section 207 of the Toxic Substances Control Act (“TSCA”™) (15 U.S.C. 2647). Where inconsistencies
exist between this section and §§22.1 through 22.32, this section shall apply.

(b) Collection of civil penalty. Any civil penalty collected under TSCA section 207 shall be used by the local educational
agency for purposes of complying with Title Il of TSCA. Any portion of a civil penalty remaining unspent after a local
educational agency achieves compliance shall be deposited into the Asbestos Trust Fund established under section 5 of
AHERA.

t

§22.42 Supplemental rules governing the administrative assessment of civil penalties for violations of compliance
orders issued to owners or operators of public water systems under part B of the Safe Drinking Water Act.

(a) Scope. This section shall apply, in conjunction with §§22.1 through 22.32, in administrative proceedings to assess a civil
penalty under section 1414(g)(3)(B) of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. 300g-3(g)(3)(B). Where inconsistencies exist
between this section and §§22.1 through 22.32, this section shall apply.

(b) Choice of forum. A complaint which specifies that subpart | of this part applies shall also state that respondent has a
right to elect a hearing on the record in accordance with 5 U.S.C. 554, and that respondent waives this right unless it requests
in its answer a hearing on the record in accordance with 5 U.S.C. 554. Upon such request, the Regional Hearing Clerk shall
recaption the documents in the record as necessary, and notify the parties of the changes.
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§22.43 Supplemental rules governing the administrative assessment of civil penalties against a federal agency under
the Safe Drinking Water Act.

(a) Scope. This section shall apply, in conjunction with §§22.1 through 22.32, in administrative proceedings to assess a civil
penalty against a federal agency under section 1447(b) of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. 300j-6(b). Where
inconsistencies exist between this section and §§22.1 through 22.32, this section shall apply.

(b) Effective date of final penalty order. Any penalty order issued pursuant to this section and section 1447(b) of the Safe
Drinking Water Act shall become effective 30 days after it has been served on the parties.

(c) Public notice of final penalty order. Upon the issuance of a final penalty order under this section, the Administrator shall
provide public notice of the order by publication, and by providing notice to any person who requests such notice. The notice
shall include:

{1) The docket number of the order;

(2) The address and phone number of the Regional Hearing Clerk from whom a copy of the order may be obtained;
(3) The location of the facility where violations were found;

(4) A description of the violations;

(5) The penalty that was assessed; and

(8) A notice that any interested person may, within 30 days of the date the order becomes final, obtain judicial review of the
penalty order pursuant to section 1447(b) of the Safe Drinking Water Act, and instruction that persons seeking judicial review
shall provide copies of any appeal to the persons described in 40 CFR 135.11(a).

R

§22.44 Supplemental rules of practice governing the termination of permits under section 402(a) of the Clean Water
Act or under section 3008(a)(3) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.

(a) Scope of this subpart. The supplemental rules of practice in this subpart shall also apply in conjunction with the
Consolidated Rules of Practice in this part and with the administrative proceedings for the termination of permits under section
402(a) of the Clean Water Act or under section 3008(a)(3) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. Notwithstanding
the Consolidated Rules of Practice, these supplemental rules shall govern with respect to the termination of such permits.

(b) In any proceeding to terminate a permit for cause under §122.64 or §270.43 of this chapter during the term of the
permit:

(1) The complaint shall, in addition to the requirements of §22.14(b), contain any additional information specified in §124.8
of this chapter;

(2) The Director (as defined in §124.2 of this chapter) shall provide public notice of the complaint in accordance with
§124.10 of this chapter, and allow for public comment in accordance with §124.11 of this chapter; and

(3) The Presiding Officer shall admit into evidence the contents of the Administrative Record described in §124.9 of this
chapter, and any public comments received.

[65 FR 30904, May 15, 2000]

§22.45 Supplemental rules governing public notice and comment in proceedings under sections 309(g) and 311(b)(6)
(B)(ii) of the Clean Water Act and section 1423(c) of the Safe Drinking Water Act.

(a) Scope. This section shall apply, in conjunction with §§22.1 through 22.32, in administrative proceedings for the
assessment of any civil penalty under sections 309(g) and 311(b)(6)(B)(ii) of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1319(g) and
1321(b)(6)(B)(ii)), and under section 1423(c) of the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. 300h-2(c}). Where inconsistencies exist
between this section and §§22.1 through 22.32, this section shall apply.

(b) Public notice—(1) General. Complainant shall notify the public before assessing a civil penalty. Such notice shall be
provided within 30 days following proof of service of the complaint on the respondent or, in the case of a proceeding proposed
to be commenced pursuant to §22.13(b}, no less than 40 days before the issuance of an order assessing a civil penalty. The
notice period begins upon first publication of notice.

(2) Type and content of public notice. The complainant shall provide public notice of the complaint (or the proposed
consent agreement if §22.13(b) is applicable) by a method reasonably calculated to provide notice, and shall also provide
notice directly to any person who requests such notice. The notice shall include:

(i) The docket number of the proceeding;
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